
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of Work Session, 
& Regular Meeting of the Newport City Council  

 
The City Council of the City of Newport will hold an work sessions on Monday, November 7, 
2011, starting at  12:00 P.M., Regular Council meeting at 6:00 P.M. The work session will be 
held in Conference Room A at City Hall, and the regular meeting will be held in the Council 
Chamber, City Hall, located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of 
the agenda follows. 
 
The meeting locations are accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter 
for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be 
made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder 
541.574.0613. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the 
agenda, and discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the work session 
and/or meeting. Action items that do not require a public hearing may be moved up earlier in 
the meeting. 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Monday, November 7, 2011 – 12:00 P.M. 

Conference Room A 
I. Fire Department Update 

II. Business License Update 
III. City Manager Update 
IV. Site Visit to Water Treatment Plant 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, November 7, 2011 -- 6:00 P.M. 

Council Chamber 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the 
City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City Council Chamber. Anyone 
commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the Public Comment section of the 
agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by 
the City Council. 
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 



 
III. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 

 
IV. Public Comments 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item 
not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a 
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 
 

V. Proclamations 
a. International Peace Day 

 
VI. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single 
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered 
separately on request. 

a. Approval of minutes from City Council work session, regular meeting, and 
executive session of October 17, 2011, and executive session of October 28, 2011 
(Hawker) 
 

VII. Officer’s Reports  
a. Mayor’s Report 
b. City Manager’s Report 

i. Department Updates 
ii. Suggestion/Concern/Complaint Form 

iii. Project Update Memo 
 

VIII. Discussion Items and Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of 
potential future action items. 
 
7:00 P.M. 

IX. Action Items  
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. (Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances.) 

a. Consideration of Herbicide Use Policy 
(Protiva) 

b. Consideration of Tourism Facilities Application 
(Voetberg) 

c. Consideration of Resolution 3561: Immunity from Personal Injury 
(Voetberg) 

d. Consideration of GP Franchise Fee for Storm Water System Mapping 
(Gross) 

e. Consideration of Resolution 3562- Communication with City Attorney 
(Voetberg) 

f. Consideration of Adopt-A-Street/Building Grounds Program 
(Voetberg) 

g. Reconsideration of Plastic Bag Community Plan 



(Voetberg) 
h. Consideration of Resolution 3564-Ending Fund Balances and Revenues 

(Marshall) 
i. Consideration of Resolution 3565 and Resolution 3566- Technical Advisory 

Task Force 
(Voetberg) 
 

X. Council Reports and Comments 
(Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 

XI. Public Comment 
 

XII. Adjournment 





Agenda Item #: ___________                   
Meeting Date: 07 November 2011      

 
City Council Agenda Item Summary 

City of Newport, Oregon 
 

Issue/Agenda Title:  Status: Business License Draft Working Group________ 

Prepared By:   David Marshall     Dept Head Approval:   dm   City Mgr Approval: ___________ 

Issue Before the Council: The “License’d Express” (Business License Draft Working Group” 
has been tasked to complete a revision to the City’s Business License Ordinance by January 
2012. 
 
This is the first report from that Group, and it is important to understand that this document is 
very much a Work In Progress and subject to further review and modification. 
 
Staff Recommendation: None. 
 
Proposed Motion: None 
 
Key Facts and Information Summary:  
 
Christy’s draft – as attached here – has incorporated changes provided to her by City staff. 
This draft was received and distributed to the other members of the Working Group 
Wednesday a.m. 
 
As this is written, further comments have been offered by Lee Hardy and Steve Beck; those 
comments have not been incorporated into the document. 
 

We consider many of the outstanding issues to those of policy.  How does the Council want 
us to proceed? For example, should a one business with multiple locations have multiple 
licenses … or just a single license? As written, the draft ordinance states that multiple 
business licenses are necessary.  
 

There are many such policy issues that must be decided. 
 

Other Alternatives Considered: None. 
 
City Council Goals: None.  
 
Attachment List:   
The November 2nd draft of the Ordinance 
 



 

NOV 2 DRAFT  

BUSINESS LICENSE FEE ORDINANCE 

 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of this chapter is to provide revenue for municipal purposes and to provide 

for the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Newport through the regulation of 

businesses, occupations and trade. A business need not be located within the City in 

order to be subject to the provisions of this Chapter. This ordinance services the public 

interest by ensuring that business will be carried on in compliance with applicable laws 

and in a manner that protects the public’s health, safety and welfare.  This Chapter’s 

licensing provisions are enacted pursuant to the City Charter, Section _____ and the 

City’s home rule authority as provided in the Oregon Constitution, Article XI, Section 2 

and Article IV, Section 1.   

 

The business license fee shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any other license or 

permit fee, charge or tax required under any other City Code section or City ordinance. 

The business license required by this ordinance shall not be construed to constitute a 

permit to engage in any activity prohibited by law nor as a waiver of any other regulatory 

or license requirement imposed by the City or by federal, state, or local law.   

 

 

DEFINITIONS 

Business – Any enterprise, establishment, store, shop, activity, profession or 

undertaking doing business of any nature within the City, whether conducted directly, 

indirectly, or cooperatively, including the holding out of Residential Premises for Rent.  

“Business” does not include the on-premises sale of used household goods by a person 

who resides on the premises (a yard or garage sale), as long as the sale is conducted 

no more than four days in any calendar year.   

Comment [C1]: Note that the ordinance is 
drafted as a fee and not a tax.  This is because it 
operates much more like a fee and it will be easier 
for the City Council to amend the rates as a fee.  If 
the City prefers to treat it as a tax, please advise. 
Note also that the ordinance is not drafted in official 
ordinance form.  Staff will assist with the correct 
format once we’ve finalized the content. 

Comment [C2]: This definition is purposefully 
broad to encompass most businesses (except yard 
sales) and as written should be construed to include 
cooperative businesses (such as antique malls).  For 
specific exclusions from the business license fee 
(but not the registration requirement), see the 
section titled “Exclusions” below. 



 

City Manager- The City Manager of the City of Newport or his or her designee. 

 

Doing Business – An act or series of acts performed in the course or pursuit of a 

business activity for more than twenty (20) hours in one calendar year. 

Employee-  A person who works in the service of another person (the employer) and 

whose work performance details are controlled by the employer.  Employees may be 

part time or full time and the number of employees will be measured using a Full Time 

Equivalent computation. 

Not-for-Profit Entity – Any entity organized and operated exclusively for a religious, 

charitable, humanitarian or educational purpose and for whom the United States and 

the State of Oregon have granted an exemption from the payment of income tax on that 

basis. 

 

Person –Any and all natural and legal persons, including individuals or public or private 

corporations, firms, partnerships, associations, organizations, syndicates, joint ventures, 

societies, or any other group or entity acting as a unit of individuals. 

 

Residential Premises for Rent – A building or buildings, or a portion of a building, 

located within the City and containing [two or more?] dwelling units that are rented, 

leased, let or made available for compensation for sleeping or living purposes. The term 

“Residential Premises for Rent” includes a hotel or motel, automobile or tourist court, 

rental or boarding house, and mobile home or trailer park. In the case of mobile homes 

or trailer parks, the term dwelling unit means space or stall. A dwelling unit occupied by 

the owner of a Residential Premises for Rent shall not be included in the dwelling unit 

count for computing the business license fee for that location.   

 

POSSIBLE ALTERNATE LANGUAGE WHICH EXEMPTS FROM THE FEE ANYONE 

RENTING OUT A TWO OR MORE DWELLING UNITS FOR 14 DAYS OR LESS IN A 

Comment [C3]: This definition carves out any 
business activity performed for 20 hours or less in a 
calendar year. 

Comment [C4]: This definition provides 
direction to City staff when calculating the amount 
of the business license fee based on FTE.  Staff may 
use other reasonable standards as directed by the 
City Manager.   

Comment [C5]: The City should also consider 
how it would like to charge owners of commercial 
space for rent.  Should such businesses be charged 
per employee or per property for rent? 
 

Comment [C6]: These “Residential Premises for 
Rent” definitions are offered as policy choices for 
the committee and City Council.  Each definition 
either narrows or expands upon the number of 
residential rentals which qualify as a “doing 
business” and are thus subject to the business 
license fee.   
 



CALENDAR YEAR:  Residential Premises for Rent- A building or buildings, or a portion 

of a building, located within the City and containing [two or more?] dwelling units that 

are rented, leased, let or made available for compensation for sleeping or living purpose 

for more than 14 calendar days in any one calendar year.   The term “Residential 

Premises for Rent” includes a hotel or motel, automobile or tourist court, rental or 

boarding house, and mobile home or trailer park. In the case of mobile homes or trailer 

parks, the term dwelling unit means space or stall. A dwelling unit occupied by the 

owner of a Residential Premises for Rent shall not be included in the dwelling unit count 

for computing the business license fee for that location.   

 

Special Event Vendors-A person engaged in selling or offering for sale any food, 

beverage, merchandise or service on [public?] property, streets, or sidewalks during a 

[City-sponsored and authorized?] event for which the event organizer has obtained a 

valid Business License. Special Event Vendors must possess all necessary City, 

County and State permits and authorizations.   

 

REGISTRATION AND FEE; EXEMPTIONS FROM FEE 

No person shall do business within the City without a current, valid City business 

license. 

   

No person shall do business within the City as an employee, agent or representative of 

another person unless the owner, principal, employee, agent or representative has a 

current, valid City license for that business, no matter where the principal offices of that 

business are situated.   

 

C. Exemptions from the Business License Fee 

1. Exempt persons listed in this subsection shall not be charged a business 

license fee.  All exemptions listed in this subsection and doing business within 

the City must submit an annual application on a form provided by the City.   

 

Comment [C7]: As the committee noted, the 
Vending ordinance will need to be amended as it 
uses the business license ordinance as a 
charging/licensing mechanism.  See my other 
comments regarding Special Event Vendors in the 
Exemptions Section below. 



2. The following persons shall not be charged a business license fee: 

 

a. A Not-for-Profit Entity, as defined in this ordinance. 

 

b. A Special Event Vendor, as defined by this ordinance.     

 
c. Persons expressly exempted from paying a City business license fee 

under any other lawful provision of federal, state, or City law, provided 

that the Person claiming the exemption shall show proof of such 

exemption satisfactory to the City Attorney. 

 

d. Persons engaged in delivery of goods from points outside the city, 

providing the sales contacts and actual sales take place outside the 

City; 

 

e. Any city, county, state agency, special district, school district or other 

government entity.   

 

MULTIPLE LOCATIONS OR BUSINESSES 

A person who does business from more than one physical location or who does 

business as more than one business entity, including any person operating a franchise, 

shall obtain separate business licenses and pay separate business license fees for 

each such location or entity.  In determining whether different business activities at the 

same location are in fact one business, normal and ordinary customs and usages of 

business shall be considered, including but not limited to consideration of how the 

businesses are registered with other governmental agencies, such as the Oregon 

Secretary of State and the Internal Revenue Services. 

 

APPLICATION; RATE 

Comment [C8]: Please note that not everyone 
on the subcommittee agreed that Special Event 
Vendors should be excluded from the fee.  City 
direction and comments requested.   
 
Also, as presently written, only vendors on public 
property at City sponsored or approved events are 
currently excluded from paying the fee.  For City 
consideration:   
 
1) Should vendors at only City sponsored events on 
public property qualify for the exemption?   
 
2) If so, what is the process for the City to sponsor 
or approve an event?   
 
3) Should vendors at all events qualify for the 
exemption as long as the event organizer has a valid 
business license? 

Comment [C9]: This section is meant to exclude 
from the fee any Person protected by state or 
federal law from being charged a business license 
fee.  (For example:  in some circumstances some 
realtors may not be charged the fee.  This is also 
true for businesses owned by persons under 17. )  

Comment [C10]: Does the City wish to exclude 
any agent of these governmental entities (such as 
contractors?)  Staff notes that charging agents for 
the fee merely increases government costs. 

Comment [C11]: This section is meant to 
provide direction to staff in determining how to bill 
for multiple businesses or multiple locations. 



All persons doing business within the City, regardless of whether they are exempt from 

the payment of a business license fee, shall register and submit an annual application 

on a form provided by the City. The application shall show:  the corporate, trade, or 

registered name of the business; the complete address(s), email address(es), and 

telephone number(s) of the principal office of the business and any other locations or 

Residential Premises for Rent; the name of the owner(s) or principal(s); the number of 

Employees or the number of Residential Premises and dwelling units; and the state of 

incorporation if the business is a corporation. On the basis of that application, the City 

shall compute the annual fee for that license according to the schedule of fees that the 

City Council shall establish from time to time by resolution.  The applicant shall warrant 

by his/her signature that all representations made on the application form are the truth 

to the best of his/her knowledge. Any misrepresentations on the application shall 

constitute a violation of this ordinance.  

 

All applications shall be submitted on or before July 1st of each year or before the 

person first does business in the City, whichever is later. A license shall be valid until 

June 30th of the next year. Applications received after January 30th will be charged one-

half of the yearly fee determined by City resolution.  

 

All business license fees shall be determined by resolution of the City Council.  The 

business license fee shall be computed, except as noted in this section, according to 

the number of employees engaged in the business within the City during the calendar 

year.  For business licenses based upon Residential Premises for Rent, the license fee 

shall be computed according to the number of dwelling units available for rent in the City 

and shall be charged to the owner of the Residential Premises for Rent.   

 

Upon receipt of a signed and completed application for a business license, the City shall 

inform the applicant of the license fee due and the basis for the calculation of the 

business license fee. The business license fee determined by the City shall be due and 

payable by the applicant no later than July 1st of the year for which the license is issued 

Comment [C12]: Does this section meets staff 
needs for processing an application?  Please note 
that staff still needs to develop the application , the 
schedule of fees, and other materials. 

Comment [C13]: Does this timeline work for the 
City budgeting process? 



or no later than 10 days after the date that the applicant first does business within the 

City in that calendar year, whichever is later. 

 

ISSUANCE; DISPLAY; TRANSFER 

The City shall issue a written receipt for a business license fee paid in full. The receipt 

shall constitute a business license and shall be public notice that the person named 

thereon is licensed to do business in the City for the year shown. A person who is 

required by this ordinance to have a business license shall cause the receipt to be 

prominently posted in a place available to the public at the principal location or office of 

the business for which the license is issued.  If the principal location or office of the 

business is not located within the City, the business’ employee, agent or representative 

must possess a copy of the license when doing business within the City.   

 

No transfer or assignment of any license issued under this chapter shall be valid or 

permitted. Upon sale or other transfer of a business, the new owners must obtain a new 

business license.   

DISCLOSURE; DELINQUENCY 

Persons required to possess a business license shall, upon the City’s request, make 

available all records, accounts and documents of every nature and in whatever media 

format which may tend to prove or disprove the applicant’s statements on his or her 

business license application. Such records may include but are not limited to records 

which show the applicant’s number of employees or records which show the number of 

applicant’s Residential Premises for Rent dwelling units.   

 

A business license fee not paid in full within 30 days after it is due is delinquent and the 

City may avail itself of any and all remedies available to collect the fee, including but not 

limited to referring the delinquency to a collection agency and citing the person for a 

violation of the Newport Code. In addition, a delinquency charge of 10 percent of the 

business license fee due may be added to the fee that is otherwise due.  This 

delinquency charge shall be charged for each successive 30 day period, or portion 

Comment [C14]: City staff:  please make sure 
that these dates and deadlines work for you. 
 



thereof, for which any amount is due and owing and remains unpaid, including any 

delinquency charges already imposed, up to a maximum penalty of ____ of the license 

fee.  

 

ADMINISTRATION  

The City Manager is responsible for the administration of this Chapter. The City 

Manager may adopt reasonable rules and regulations necessary to carry out the 

purpose and intent of this Chapter.  Violations of this Chapter or of any rules and 

regulations adopted by the City Manager pursuant to this Chapter shall be subject to the 

penalties provided for within this Chapter. No person shall willfully make any false or 

misleading statements to the City Manager regarding information relevant to the 

issuance of a business license. 

 

REVOCATION 

A license issued under the provisions of this chapter may be revoked by the City 

Manager, after notice, for any of the following causes: 

1. Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in the application 

for a license; 

 2. A violation of this Chapter; 

3. Conducting the licensed activity in an unlawful manner or in such a 

manner so as to constitute a breach of the peace or to endanger or risk 

the health, safety or general welfare of the public; 

Notice of revocation of a license shall be given in writing to the licensee, setting forth 

specifically the grounds of complaint. Such notice shall be mailed to the licensee at the 

licensee’s last known address at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of 

revocation. The last known address is deemed to be the address provided to the City by 

Comment [C15]: Subcommittee guidance 
requested regarding the delinquency charges. 

Comment [C16]: City staff:  please make sure 
that these dates and deadlines work for you. 



the applicant on the business license application unless the applicant thereafter gives 

the city written notice of a different address.  

VIOLATIONS 

A violation of this chapter shall constitute a civil violation of the laws of Newport and 

shall be prosecuted at the City’s discretion by the filing of a complaint filed in City 

municipal court or in an Oregon state court of proper jurisdiction. Any person found to 

have violated this Chapter shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed five hundred 

dollars ($500.00). 

Each violation of a separate provision of this Chapter shall constitute a separate offense 

and each day that a violation of this chapter is committed or permitted to continue shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

The conviction of any person for violation of this Chapter shall not act or relieve such 

person from the requirement to obtain a business license. The penalties imposed by this 

section are in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies available to the City.  

In the event any provision of this chapter is violated by a firm or corporation, the officer, 

officers or individuals responsible for the violation shall be personally subject to the 

penalties imposed by this section.  

 

APPEAL 

Any person aggrieved by the City Manager’s (i) denial of a business license application; 

(ii) revocation of a business license; (iii) assessment of business license fees; or (iv) 

application of any rules or regulations pertaining to this Chapter, shall have the right to 

appeal to the City Council. The applicant or licensee shall file with the City Council a 

written statement setting forth fully the grounds for the appeal within twenty (20) 

calendar days after either:  (i) the day the notice indicating denial or revocation is 

mailed; (ii) the day the disputed fees are assessed; or (iii) the day the rules or 

regulations were allegedly misapplied to the applicant.  The City Council shall set a time 

and place for a hearing on the appeal within twenty (20) calendar days after receiving 

Comment [C17]: City staff:  please make sure 
that all appeal dates and deadlines work for you. 



the appeal.  Notice of the appeal hearing shall be mailed to the applicant or licensee’s 

last known address at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the hearing. During the 

hearing, the applicant or licensee shall have an opportunity to present in writing or 

verbally the grounds for the appeal. The decision and order of the City Council on such 

appeal shall be final and conclusive. 

 

 







October 17, 2011 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 

Councilors present: McConnell, Brusselback, Allen, Bertuleit, Roumagoux, Beemer, and 
Sawyer. 
 
Technical Advisory Task Force Members present: Anne Sigleo, David Young, Frank 
DiFilippis, Peter Lawson, and Charlie Plybon. Excused were Jim Fuller and Joe 
Hayward. 
 
Staff present: Voetberg, Hawker, Protiva, and Miranda. 
 
1. Council and the Technical Advisory Task Force discussed the work of the Task 

Force and the proposed RFP that has been developed. A discussion ensued 
regarding whether the process should be that of an RFP or a grant. It was suggested 
that the process be left open-ended. A discussion ensued regarding the two 
resolutions that established the Task Force and funding. The Task Force noted that 
they are willing to continue work on this project. Plybon suggested that a list of 
potential vendors be developed; a list of publications in which to advertise; and 
Sigleo suggested advertising in the federal grant list. It was agreed that new 
resolutions would be required that amend the original resolutions, and that the draft 
RFP be sent to the legal team for review. 

2. Protiva distributed a list of potential park usage rules. He noted that without the rules, 
the Police Department cannot do their jobs. Allen asked whether staff had checked 
with other cities regarding park usage rules. Miranda noted that this would match the 
state parks process. After a brief discussion, it was agreed that staff would refine the 
rules and prepare and ordinance adopting them. 

3. MOTION was made by Roumagoux, seconded by Beemer, to enter executive 
session pursuant to 192.660(2)(h) to consult with legal counsel. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote, and Council entered executive session at 1:03 P.M. 
MOTION was made by Brusselback, seconded by Bertuleit, to leave executive 
session. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its 
work session at 1:28 P.M. 

4. Voetberg reported that there are two potential ConnectOregonIV grant opportunities 
for the city. One is the local match for the rehabilitation of Runway 16/34, and the 
other is the local match for ramp access area development associated with the 
relocation of the Tillamook Air Museum. A discussion ensued regarding the status of 
negotiations with the Erickson group (owners of the Tillamook Air Museum). 
Voetberg reported that the city has been in contact with the Erickson group, and that 
the Port of Tillamook is working on encouraging the Museum to stay in Tillamook. He 
noted that it could be several months before the city hears from the Erickson group. 
Voetberg reported that the Port of Newport is also applying for a COIV grant for its 



international terminal renovation, and that the city could support this application. It 
was the consensus of Council to support both potential city grant applications. 

5. It was agreed to conduct a site visit of the new water treatment facility after the work 
session on November 7, 2011. 

6. It was agreed to hold a joint meeting with the Port of Newport on November 21, 
2011, from 5:00 – 6:00 P.M. 

7.  Council was reminded that a Town Hall meeting had been scheduled for November 16, 
  2011, at the Guin Library, in the Hatfield Marine Science Center. 
8.  It was agreed to hold only one Council meeting in December. 
9.  Upcoming work session items include: pesticide policy; revision to communication with city 
  attorney; committee application updates; update from Tourism Facilities Task Force; and 
  economic development; and update from the Public Arts Task Force. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:52 P.M. 
 



 
October 17, 2011 

6:00 P.M. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 
 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Brusselback, Beemer, Allen, Sawyer, 
Bertuleit, Roumagoux, and McConnell were present. 
 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Finance Director Marshall, Public Works Director Gross, 
Parks and Recreation Director Protiva, Police Chief Miranda, Lieutenant Malloy. Parks 
and Recreation Director Protiva arrived at 6:30 P.M. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Council and audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONA/DELETIONS AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Council agreed to add action item C., consideration of Resolution No. 3560, to the 
agenda.  

McConnell noted that a clipboard was located in the entryway for sign up by folks 
interested in speaking on the plastic bag community plan. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 McConnell noted that a three minute time limit for public comment will be observed. 
 Jodi Lindquist addressed Council regarding issues she has with the Police 
Department.   
 Rennie Ferris addressed Council regarding business licenses, and suggested that 
the city attorney be required to obtain a business license. Marshall reported that she is 
sending a check for this fiscal year. 
 Tyson Franck suggested that the city reevaluate the police department staffing. 
 Don Searcy and Jorge Hernandez requested Council consider a resolution regarding 
fairness and equity for immigrants, and recognizing International Peace Day. McConnell 
noted that staff can redraft this document as a proclamation, and it can be renewed 
annually. 
 Regina Martinez, owner of Under the Pumpkin Patch and Martinez Day Care, 
addressed Council regarding emissions from the Road and Driveway asphalt plant. It 
was suggested that she notify responsible agencies as the city has no jurisdiction over 
this issue. 
 
 
 



PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
 McConnell proclaimed October 24, 2011 as World Polio Day in the City of Newport. 
Carol Ruggeri, Mark Miranda, and Jim Voetberg accepted the proclamation. 
 
 McConnell proclaimed the city’s gratitude and appreciation to Lincoln County 
Sheriff’s Deputy Sergeant Robert Jozwaik upon his retirement from law enforcement. 
 
 McConnell reported that Bike Newport received an award for business from the 
Austin Family Business program. 
  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Approval of City Council minutes from the work session of September 19, 2011,  
  and the work session and regular meeting of October 3, 2011; 
 B. Report of accounts paid for September 2011; 
 C. Fire and Police Department monthly reports for September 2011. 
 
 It was noted that the city attorney has requested an amendment to the September 
19, 2011 work session minutes, and that a copy of the revised minutes had previously 
been distributed to Council. MOTION was made by Bertuleit, seconded by Brusselback, 
to adopt the consent calendar as presented. The motion carried unanimously in a voice 
vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 

 Mayor’s Report. McConnell appointed Liz Martin, Rick Letherer, Jeff Strike, Don 
Taylor, and Dennis Lancaster to the Non-Profit Funding Review Task Force. MOTION 
was made by Brusselback, seconded by Beemer, to ratify the Mayor’s appointments. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Voetberg reported that the packet contains the updated 
suggestion/concern/complaint report. He noted that the packet also contains an update 
on key city projects. Bertuleit asked about the sidewalk under bridge, and Gross 
reported that quotes are needed, and this will occur when certain other projects are 
advanced. McConnell asked whether there is funding for the fence for the North Jetty 
Trail. Gross noted that it is in the budget, but quotes are needed. Brusselback asked 
about the status of the NW Third Street sidewalk. Gross noted that this is a project that 
will be delegated to the new project manager. McConnell asked about the Agate Beach 
wastewater improvements. Gross reported that the system in the north part of the city is 
past its useful life; a system analysis has been performed; and the analysis is being 
reviewed with the goal of obtaining an estimate from the consultant. He added that this 
is a part of the master plan process. Allen asked whether the city is looking at engaging 
stakeholders regarding storm drainage improvements work during development of the 
next budget. Voetberg reported that he would have a cost estimate for storm drain 



analysis at the next meeting. McConnell noted that the next quarterly meeting with 
ODOT will be held on October 19. Beemer asked about the status of permitting and 
bursting at Big Creek. Gross reported that the permit has been submitted and the city is 
awaiting a response. Gross added that the contractor has been selected to perform the 
Nye Beach storm drain work, and that work should begin within the next few weeks. 
 Voetberg reported that the city had received a gold safety award at the recent LOC 
Conference. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Marshall delivered a PowerPoint presentation on the first quarter financial results for 
fiscal year 2011/2012. He responded to Council questions. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 Plastic Bag Community Plan. McConnell opened the public hearing on the plastic 
bag community plan at 7:00 P.M. He asked for public comment. 
 The following people spoke in support of a ban on single use plastic bags: 
 Terry Obteshka, Newport resident and business owner; 
 Joe Gilliam, Northwest Grocery Association; 
 Matt Hawkyard, local chair of Surfrider’s Foundation; 
 Daniella Crowder, small business owner and member of “Buy Lincoln County” board 
of directors; 
 Dennis Fry, Newport resident and small business owner; 
 Frank DiFilippis, Newport resident; 
 Teri Allen; 
 Ellen Franklin, Newport resident; 
 Charlie Plybon, representing Surfrider’s Foundation; 
 JoAnn Barton, Newport resident; 
 Vince Pappalardo, Newport resident and Surfrider Foundation member; 
 Greg Harlo, Newport resident; 
 Rhonda Fry, Newport resident and manager of Oceana Natural Foods; 
 Matthew Gray, graduate student at HMSC; and 
 Mar Lehrman, Dave Mathews, and Fran Recht (via e-mail). 
 McConnell read an e-mail from Kevin Redding expressing opposition to a proposed 
ban on single use plastic bags. 
 A discussion ensued regarding a deposit or fee for use of paper bags. Joe Hayward 
stated that the fee concept has a constitutional problem. 
 Plybon reported that the opposition to the proposed state ban was well organized 
and well funded, and coordinated in South Carolina where many plastic bags are 
manufactured. 
 McConnell noted that the packet contains a list of 40 small local businesses that 
support a single use plastic bag ban.  
 Hearing no further public comment, the hearing was closed at 8:22 P.M. 
 Brusselback noted that some very interesting comments were made this evening. He 
agreed that customers need an incentive, as this is a cultural shift. He noted that he is in 
favor of a fee for use of a paper bag. He added that this is a great branding opportunity; 



a great leadership opportunity; and that it is time that the issue is addressed. MOTION 
was made by Brusselback, seconded by Roumagoux, to move forward with using the 
Surfrider's Foundation Option 1, with the fee concept, rather than a deposit and to direct 
staff to bring an ordinance to Council at the earliest opportunity. Allen suggested that 
there may be community members who do not share this opinion, and that another way 
to gauge public opinion would be to hold an advisory vote of the people. He noted that 
there would be little cost if the vote was held during a primary or general election. 
Sawyer noted that he would like to lessen the impact on businesses and lower income 
folks. McConnell noted that the plight of lower income folks could be addressed in the 
ordnance. Brusselback noted that in terms of outreach, this is a publicly noticed meeting 
and there are no opponents. He added that this can be seen as a measure of the 
support of the general population. Bertuleit noted that he is disappointed in the 
corporate structure. He added that he would rather ban nonbiodegradable products that 
are used for packaging. He noted that he agrees with Allen regarding the advisory vote. 
Voting aye in a voice vote were Roumagoux, Brusselback, McConnell, Sawyer, and 
Beemer. Voting no were Allen and Bertuleit. It was agreed that staff provide a schedule 
at the next meeting regarding when the ordinance will come back to Council. The 
schedule should include public hearings to allow for adequate public comment. It was 
noted that the ordinance will not likely appear on an agenda until January. 
  

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Consideration of Resolution No. 3559 adopting an Adopt-A-Park Policy for the City 
of Newport. Protiva reported that the attached Adopt-A-Park policy has been reviewed 
by legal counsel, previously discussed by the City Council, and recommended for 
approval. McConnell asked whether adopting a streetscape would be considered a park. 
Brusselback asked when a new parks master plan will be completed. Protiva stated that 
it is not budgeted in the immediate future. MOTION was made by Brusselback, 
seconded by Beemer, to adopt Resolution No. 3559 adopting an Adopt-A-Park Policy 
for the City of Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. McConnell 
suggested identifying a way for volunteers to assist in the maintenance of non-park city 
properties. 
 
 Consideration of Adoption of Ordinance No. 2023 regarding Transient Room Tax 
Revenues. It was noted that the issue before Council is consideration of the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2023 which would amend Section 2 of Ordinance No. 1849 requiring that 
the city place certain room tax revenues in a “Tourism Facilities Fund” and that the Fund 
be used for an event center, conference center, convention center, or similar tourist 
facility. It was noted that the Tourism Facilities Fund was never established. If adopted, 
the ordinance would formalize past and current accounting of transient room tax 
revenue and accurately state how the funds for tourism facilities are contemplated to be 
spent. Allen asked whether there was any money from the 1.5% rate subject to the 
70/30 allocation. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Bertuleit, to read 
Ordinance No. 2023, regarding transient room tax revenues, by title only, and place for 
final passage. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. Voetberg read the title of 
Ordinance No. 2023. Voting aye on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2023 were 
McConnell, Allen, Bertuleit, Beemer, Sawyer, Roumagoux, and Brusselback. 



 
Consideration of Adoption of Resolution No. 3560, Adopting Minor Amendment Eight 

to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. It was noted that this is the same resolution 
adopted earlier this evening by the Urban Renewal Agency. MOTION was made by 
Brusselback, seconded by Sawyer, to adopt Resolution No. 3560, a resolution adopting 
Minor Amendment Eight to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Roumagoux reported on a recent meeting of the Recreation Facility Management 
Review Task Force at which the Task Force reviewed information from other facilities. 
She noted that the Task Force is on schedule. 
 Roumagoux reported that she attended the OCCC scholarship ceremony. She 
added that she is amazed at the number of students, and their good work. 
 Brusselback reported that he attended the recent Homeless Connect program, and 
was impressed with the program and that many young people volunteered. 
 Beemer reported that he had participated in the recent tsunami evacuation drill. He 
noted that he will have a report for Council at a later date. Sawyer thanked the 
participants in the drill. 
 Bertuleit reported on the work of the Tourism Facilities Task Force. He added that 
the application will be sent for legal review, and that a short Task Force meeting will be 
needed. He noted that it should come to Council soon. 
 Bertuleit reported on the HMSC running club, and noted that a number of folks from 
out of town attended a recent event. 
 Allen updated Council on the recent OPAC meeting. 
 Allen reported on the quarterly OCZMA meeting. He added that he and Tokos spoke 
at this meeting. 
  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Jodi Lindquist suggested a clean sweep of the Police Department. She stated that 
she had a negative experience with the Police Department. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:17 P.M. 
 
 
 
_________________________________   _____________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder     Mark McConnell, Mayor 
 





























































SUGGESTION/CONCERN/COMPLAINT FORM--CITY OF NEWPORT
Date City
 Notified No. Assigned Claimant Suggestion/Concern/Complaint Status

7/8/2011 137-PW-7-8-11 Patricia O'Dell Would like the "bumps" at/near
Rhododenron intersection rem

 NW 60th & 
oved/dealt with.

OPENED 7-8-11: This is not possible 
at this time, this is the fault line and 
moves continuosly. Talked with City 
Manager regarding this. 

9/29/2011 145-PW-9-29-11 Home Owner-NW 47th St Sewage Smell OPENED 9-29-11: House is located 
close to pump station, PW installed 
rainguards to help reduce smell. 
CLOSED 9-29-11

9/29/2011 146-PW-9-29-11 Anonymous Sewer locate, owner looking fo
Newport Plumping camered an
of root and a split joint

r sewer lateral, 
d found a clump 

OPENED 9-29-11: Let the homeowner 
know that the City is not responsible 
for laterals. CLOSED 9-2911

9/6/2011 147-PW-9-6-11 Matteo Costamagna Would like the alder tree growi
where the water booster station
he can enjoy his ocean view ag

ng on the city's lot 
 sits topped so 
ain.

OPENED 9-611: Removed the tree's 
that were over hanging the curb and 
hitting sweeper and other trucks. 
CLOSED 10-17-11

10/11/2011 148-PW-10-11-11 Enrique Sanchez Was advised by his landlord th
the brush in the alley that runs 
apartment complex.

at city would cut 
next to his 

OPENED 10-11-11: Mowed brush in 
the City right of way. CLOSED 10-21-
11p p





 

Memo 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager and City Council 

From: Timothy Gross, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Date: November 7, 2011 

Re: Capital Projects Status Update 

 
 
Water Filtration Facility 
Please see the attached 3 month look ahead schedule and cost summary sheet. A more detailed update on the 
water treatment facility will be provided at the 11-7-11 Council Work Session. 
 
Big Creek Road Slides – FEMA Emergency Assistance 
FEI performed a geotechnical investigation on 10/31/11 to 11/1/11. A geotechnical report will follow in the 
coming weeks. 
 
Coast Park Improvements 
Volunteer crews are currently installing landscaping. Additional improvements need to be completed to comply 
with the Grant requirements.  
 
Hwy 101/South Beach Sewer and Water Improvements 
Staff is preparing easement documents for this project. 
 
Naterlin Drive to Yaquina Bay State Park Sidewalk 
Staff is preparing the construction documents for this project. 
 
Big Creek Sanitary Sewer Pipe-bursting 
Brown and Caldwell is currently working on a scope of services for this project. 
 
North Jetty Trail 
The City has received the signed easement agreement from the USCG for constructing a fence and opening 
the trail for public access from Naterlin Drive to the North Jetty. City staff will solicit quotes for the fence work 
within the next few weeks. 
 
Nye Beach/Oceana Drainage Improvements 
Contractor is working on this project now. All improvements should be completed around November 11. 
 
NW 6th/3rd Street Sidewalks/Nye Beach Drainage Improvements/NW 3rd Street Streetlights 
Staff is preparing the construction documents for this project. 
 
 
 
Agate Beach Water Tank 
Civil West is currently working on the design of this tank. A preliminary planset has been submitted to the City 
and Staff are currently reviewing the plans. 



 
Agate Beach Wastewater Improvements 
Brown and Caldwell are currently performing an analysis of this system to determine which improvements need 
to be completed first and what the estimated costs will be. Staff has received and is reviewing their preliminary 
report. 
 
NE 3rd and Avery Street Sanitary Sewer Realignment 
The survey has been completed in the project area and City staff is preparing plans and specifications. 
 
Embarcadaro Storm Drain Manhole 
The manhole at the Embarcadaro has been repaired. During the repair process it was discovered that the 
upstream concrete pipe coming from John Moore Boulevard is failing. The joints in the pipe are displaced and  
the pipe is settled approximately 3’ in the center. It is likely that the tidal influence is causing the material below 
the pipe to infiltrate through the exposed joints and is exacerbating the sagging condition. City staff is 
investigating the condition of the pipe upstream of this section to determine its condition and will determine a 
future course of action at that time. Currently there is no funding source to pay for storm sewer pipe repair of this 
scale.  
 
Senior Project Manager Interviews 
A promising candidate has been interview and Staff are currently reviewing references and preparing an offer. 





Costs through:    10/31/11
Report Date: 11/2/11

A B  C D E F G = D + E + F H I J K L = J + K M = L ‐ G

Item Description UM  Project Budget 
 Budget 

Adjustments 
 Change Orders   Current Budget 

 Encumbrances to 
date* 

 Encumbrances to 
complete 

 Costs To‐Date  
 Costs To 
Complete 

 Forecast Cost at 
Completion 

 Variance 

001‐008 Preconstruction Services 98,260.00 0.00 0.00 98,260.00 98,260.00 0.00 98,260.00 0.00 98,260.00 0.00
1000 Early Work Amendment #1 Allowance All 225,335.74 0.00 (3,339.87) 221,995.87 221,995.87 0.00 221,995.87 0.00 221,995.87 0.00
100 General Conditions MOS 90,000.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 0.00
101 GMP #1 Mobilization LS 130,000.00 0.00 0.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 0.00 130,000.00 0.00 130,000.00 0.00
102 Advertising LS 21,730.00 0.00 0.00 21,730.00 21,730.00 0.00 21,730.00 0.00 21,730.00 0.00
103 Reproduction Costs ALL 12,500.00 0.00 (12,500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
104 General Housekeeping MOS 10,086.00 0.00 0.00 10,086.00 10,086.00 0.00 10,086.00 0.00 10,086.00 0.00
105 Material Hoisting/Distribution MOS 27,536.34 0.00 0.00 27,536.34 27,536.34 0.00 27,536.34 0.00 27,536.34 0.00
106 Temp Fencing/Barricades/Signs LS 11,560.00 0.00 0.00 11,560.00 11,560.00 0.00 11,560.00 0.00 11,560.00 0.00
107 Temp Lay Down Area / Roads LS 19,921.00 0.00 0.00 19,921.00 19,921.00 0.00 19,921.00 0.00 19,921.00 0.00
108 Waste Management MOS 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
150 Surveying ALL 5,000.00 0.00 (3,375.00) 1,625.00 1,625.00 0.00 1,625.00 0.00 1,625.00 0.00

2000 Soldier Pile Retaining Wall LS 299,500.00 0.00 0.00 299,500.00 299,500.00 0.00 299,500.00 0.00 299,500.00 0.00
2001 Concrete Fascia LS 176,500.00 0.00 0.00 176,500.00 176,500.00 0.00 176,500.00 0.00 176,500.00 0.00
2002 Excavation LS 62,100.00 0.00 0.00 62,100.00 62,100.00 0.00 62,100.00 0.00 62,100.00 0.00
2003 Concrete Drainage Swale LS 21,000.00 0.00 (3,189.00) 17,811.00 17,811.00 0.00 17,811.00 0.00 17,811.00 0.00
2004 6 Ft Vinyl Coated Chain Link Fence LS 8,900.00 0.00 (8,900.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2010 Force Main Sewer Line & HDPE Conduit LS 79,710.21 0.00 4,041.72 83,751.93 83,751.93 0.00 83,751.93 0.00 83,751.93 0.00
2020 Relocate Existing Piping at Clearwell ALL 59,107.00 0.00 28,704.93 87,811.93 87,811.93 0.00 87,811.93 0.00 87,811.93 0.00
2030 Rammed Aggregate Piers ALL 400,000.00 0.00 (112,074.30) 287,925.70 287,925.70 0.00 287,925.70 0.00 287,925.70 0.00
2072 Garage Demo ALL 28,598.78 0.00 (17,798.78) 10,800.00 10,800.00 0.00 10,800.00 0.00 10,800.00 0.00

01100 GMP #2 General Conditions MOS 300,000.00 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 270,000.00 0.00 300,000.00 0.00 300,000.00 0.00
01105 GMP #2 Reproduction Costs ALL 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 3,500.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 4,000.00 7,500.00 0.00
01110 GMP #2 General Housekeeping MOS 40,244.00 0.00 0.00 40,244.00 40,244.00 0.00 40,244.00 0.00 40,244.00 0.00
01115 GMP #2 Material Hoisting/Distribution MOS 110,045.00 0.00 0.00 110,045.00 110,045.00 0.00 110,045.00 0.00 110,045.00 0.00
01120 GMP #2 Temp Fence Maintenance/Signs LS 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
01125 Remove adn Restoration of laydown areas LS 7,570.00 0.00 0.00 7,570.00 0.00 7,570.00 0.00 7,570.00 7,570.00 0.00
01130 Temporary Weather Protection ALL 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00
01135 GMP #2 Waste Management MOS 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00
01150 GMP #2 Surveying ALL 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 3,675.00 3,675.00 3,325.00 3,675.00 7,000.00 0.00
02221 Membrane Bldg Encasements LS 84,355.00 0.00 0.00 84,355.00 84,355.00 0.00 84,355.00 0.00 84,355.00 0.00
02222 Site Piping Material LS 245,583.00 0.00 0.00 245,583.00 245,583.00 0.00 245,583.00 0.00 245,583.00 0.00
02223 Site Piping Placement LS 360,389.27 0.00 0.00 360,389.27 360,389.27 0.00 360,389.27 0.00 360,389.27 0.00
02224 Structural Fill Placement & Grading LS 81,038.00 0.00 0.00 81,038.00 81,038.00 0.00 81,038.00 0.00 81,038.00 0.00
02250 Earthwork Allowance ALL 23,596.00 0.00 0.00 23,596.00 17,549.00 6,047.00 17,549.00 6,047.00 23,596.00 0.00
02272 Gravel Surfacing Allowance ALL 24,750.00 0.00 0.00 24,750.00 7,860.00 16,890.00 7,860.00 16,890.00 24,750.00 0.00
02444 Chain Link Fence LS 16,259.00 0.00 8,900.00 25,159.00 25,159.00 0.00 8,900.00 16,259.00 25,159.00 0.00
02950 Landscaping Allowance ALL 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
03100 Form Materials LS 44,971.00 0.00 0.00 44,971.00 44,971.00 0.00 44,971.00 0.00 44,971.00 0.00
03200 Concrete Reinforcement LS 133,866.00 0.00 0.00 133,866.00 133,866.00 0.00 133,866.00 0.00 133,866.00 0.00
03300 Concrete & Concrete Pumping LS 160,038.00 0.00 0.00 160,038.00 160,038.00 0.00 160,038.00 0.00 160,038.00 0.00
03310 Sidewalks LS 52,378.00 0.00 0.00 52,378.00 52,378.00 0.00 52,378.00 0.00 52,378.00 0.00
03320 Membrane Bldg Concrete Placement LS 138,912.00 0.00 0.00 138,912.00 138,912.00 0.00 138,912.00 0.00 138,912.00 0.00
03330 Clearwell Concrete Placement LS 30,389.00 0.00 0.00 30,389.00 30,389.00 0.00 30,389.00 0.00 30,389.00 0.00
03350 GAC/Flocc Concrete Placement LS 26,325.00 0.00 0.00 26,325.00 26,325.00 0.00 26,325.00 0.00 26,325.00 0.00
04200 Masonry LS 349,677.00 0.00 0.00 349,677.00 349,677.00 0.00 349,677.00 0.00 349,677.00 0.00
05211 Steel Joists & Decking LS 182,790.00 0.00 0.00 182,790.00 182,790.00 0.00 182,790.00 0.00 182,790.00 0.00
05500 Fabricated Metals LS 167,393.00 0.00 0.00 167,393.00 167,393.00 0.00 167,393.00 0.00 167,393.00 0.00
07210 Building Insulation ALL 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,272.00 0.00 7,272.00 0.00 7,272.00 (228.00)
07412 Metal Roofing LS 147,662.00 0.00 0.00 147,662.00 147,662.00 0.00 147,662.00 0.00 147,662.00 0.00
08110 Metal Doors & Frames LS 37,388.00 0.00 0.00 37,388.00 37,388.00 0.00 37,388.00 0.00 37,388.00 0.00

Newport Water Treatment Plant 
Construction Cost Tracking 

<‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐COSTS‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐><‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐BUDGET‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐> <‐‐‐ENCUMBRANCES‐‐‐>



08220 FRP Doors & Frames LS 28,066.00 0.00 0.00 28,066.00 28,066.00 0.00 28,066.00 0.00 28,066.00 0.00
08332 Overhead Doors LS 16,675.00 0.00 0.00 16,675.00 16,675.00 0.00 16,675.00 0.00 16,675.00 0.00
08410 Storefront Windows & Glazing LS 7,950.00 0.00 0.00 7,950.00 7,950.00 0.00 7,950.00 0.00 7,950.00 0.00
08700 Finish Hardware LS 22,326.00 0.00 0.00 22,326.00 22,326.00 0.00 22,326.00 0.00 22,326.00 0.00
09110 Interior Framing LS 15,677.00 0.00 0.00 15,677.00 15,677.00 0.00 15,677.00 0.00 15,677.00 0.00
09130 Acoustical Ceiling LS 11,544.00 0.00 0.00 11,544.00 11,544.00 0.00 0.00 11,544.00 11,544.00 0.00
09250 Drywall LS 31,353.00 0.00 0.00 31,353.00 31,353.00 0.00 31,353.00 0.00 31,353.00 0.00
09310 Ceramic Tile LS 5,693.00 0.00 0.00 5,693.00 5,693.00 0.00 0.00 5,693.00 5,693.00 0.00
09660 Resilent Flooring & Base LS 3,209.00 0.00 0.00 3,209.00 3,209.00 0.00 0.00 3,209.00 3,209.00 0.00
09905 Painting & Protective Coatings LS 105,700.00 0.00 0.00 105,700.00 105,700.00 0.00 88,000.00 17,700.00 105,700.00 0.00
10400 Miscellaneous Specialties LS 12,174.00 0.00 0.00 12,174.00 1,217.40 10,956.60 1,217.40 10,956.60 12,174.00 0.00
11000 Equipment Hoisting & Accessories LS 28,000.00 0.00 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 0.00 28,000.00 0.00 28,000.00 0.00
11062 Chemical Submersible & Sampling Pumps LS 5,200.00 0.00 0.00 5,200.00 5,200.00 0.00 1,600.00 3,600.00 5,200.00 0.00
11063 Floating Submersible Pump Station LS 15,800.00 0.00 0.00 15,800.00 15,800.00 0.00 14,220.00 1,580.00 15,800.00 0.00
11072 Vertical Turbine Line Pumps LS 108,000.00 0.00 0.00 108,000.00 108,000.00 0.00 108,000.00 0.00 108,000.00 0.00
11075 Vertical Turbine Can Pumps LS 146,300.00 0.00 0.00 146,300.00 146,300.00 0.00 146,300.00 0.00 146,300.00 0.00
11076 Submersible Non‐Clog pumps LS 11,500.00 0.00 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 0.00 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 0.00
11082 Peristaltic Pumps LS 69,900.00 0.00 0.00 69,900.00 69,900.00 0.00 69,900.00 0.00 69,900.00 0.00
11182 Chemical Storage Tanks LS 59,200.00 0.00 0.00 59,200.00 59,200.00 0.00 59,200.00 0.00 59,200.00 0.00
11358 GAC System LS 326,934.00 0.00 0.00 326,934.00 326,934.00 0.00 289,800.00 37,134.00 326,934.00 0.00
11359 Flocculation System LS 109,500.00 0.00 0.00 109,500.00 109,500.00 0.00 109,500.00 0.00 109,500.00 0.00
11500 Storage Totes LS 11,600.00 0.00 0.00 11,600.00 11,600.00 0.00 11,600.00 0.00 11,600.00 0.00
11601 Laboratory Accessories LS 10,500.00 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 500.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 0.00
12356 Laboratory Casework & Fumehood LS 36,323.00 0.00 0.00 36,323.00 36,323.00 0.00 0.00 36,323.00 36,323.00 0.00
12500 Furnishings LS 2,731.00 0.00 0.00 2,731.00 2,731.00 0.00 0.00 2,731.00 2,731.00 0.00
13122 Prefabricated Wood Building ALL 40,855.00 0.00 0.00 40,855.00 12,640.00 28,215.00 6,320.00 34,535.00 40,855.00 0.00
13216 Glass Fused Steel Reservoir LS 279,700.00 0.00 0.00 279,700.00 279,700.00 0.00 274,106.00 5,594.00 279,700.00 0.00
13400 Install Pall Equipment LS 79,400.00 0.00 0.00 79,400.00 79,400.00 0.00 65,580.00 13,820.00 79,400.00 0.00
13440 Instrumentation & Controls LS 197,506.00 0.00 0.00 197,506.00 197,506.00 0.00 187,759.29 9,746.71 197,506.00 0.00
14240 Hydraulic Elevator LS 43,750.00 0.00 0.00 43,750.00 43,750.00 0.00 13,125.00 30,625.00 43,750.00 0.00
15060 Process Mechanical Installation LS 245,420.00 0.00 0.00 245,420.00 245,420.00 0.00 233,149.00 12,271.00 245,420.00 0.00
15061 Process Mechanical Materials LS 417,815.00 0.00 0.00 417,815.00 417,815.00 0.00 417,815.00 0.00 417,815.00 0.00
15065 Mechanical Supports LS 71,554.00 0.00 0.00 71,554.00 71,554.00 0.00 71,554.00 0.00 71,554.00 0.00
15100 Valves LS 92,620.00 0.00 0.00 92,620.00 92,620.00 0.00 92,620.00 0.00 92,620.00 0.00
15300 Fire Protection LS 37,102.00 0.00 0.00 37,102.00 37,102.00 0.00 37,102.00 0.00 37,102.00 0.00
15440 Plumbing LS 129,550.00 0.00 0.00 129,550.00 129,550.00 0.00 110,117.50 19,432.50 129,550.00 0.00
15605 HVAC LS 439,500.00 0.00 0.00 439,500.00 439,500.00 0.00 351,012.50 88,487.50 439,500.00 0.00
16000 Electrical LS 1,433,094.00 0.00 0.00 1,433,094.00 1,433,094.00 0.00 1,199,793.00 233,301.00 1,433,094.00 0.00
17100 Intake Mechanical ALL 297,612.00 0.00 0.00 297,612.00 80,255.00 217,357.00 68,960.00 228,652.00 297,612.00 0.00
17200 Electrical Creek Crossing ALL 128,289.00 0.00 0.00 128,289.00 112,941.00 15,348.00 112,941.00 0.00 112,941.00 (15,348.00)
17300 Raw Water Line Replacement ALL 200,000.00 0.00 3,375.00 203,375.00 203,513.00 0.00 203,513.00 3,800.00 207,313.00 3,938.00
18000 Owners Contingency LS 260,252.00 (92,541.00) 51,065.20 218,776.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (218,776.20)
18001 Budget Transfer #1 LS 0.00 10,776.00 0.00 10,776.00 10,776.00 0.00 10,436.00 340.00 10,776.00 0.00
18002 Budget Transfer #2 LS 0.00 71,645.00 0.00 71,645.00 71,645.00 0.00 68,009.00 3,636.00 71,645.00 0.00
18003 Budget Transfer #3 LS 0.00 7,120.00 0.00 7,120.00 7,120.00 0.00 2,576.00 4,544.00 7,120.00 0.00
1.8004 Budget Transfer #4 LS 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
20000 GMP #1 Fee LS 102,672.45 0.00 (6,429.90) 96,242.55 96,242.55 0.00 96,242.55 0.00 96,242.55 0.00
20002 GMP #2 Fee LS 633,100.00 0.00 0.00 633,100.00 433,280.69 199,819.31 514,445.54 118,654.46 633,100.00 0.00

Totals 10,940,609.79 0.00 (71,520.00) 10,869,089.79 10,098,195.68 522,377.91 9,621,824.82 1,016,850.77 10,638,675.59 (230,414.20)
  * Encumberences include executed subcontract agreements, work bid by SCG and completed work billed to date.


























































































































































	AGENDA-11-7-11
	Business License
	Staff Report Status of 'License'd Express'_The Business License Draft Working Group
	BIZ LICENSE NOV 2

	Peace Proc
	WSOctober 17, 2011
	October 17 2011
	Manager's Memo
	Suggestion-Concern-Complaint Report
	Sheet1

	Project Status Memo
	Project Status Memo - TEG 11-7-11
	Newport WFF schedule 11-3-11
	Construction Cost Tracking 10-31-11

	Hebicide
	TourismFacilitiesGrant
	Res 3561
	GP Franchise Storm Water
	Comm with Attorney
	Adopt-A-Street
	PlasticBag
	Res3564
	Res 3565 3566

